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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Attorney General’s office representing state defendants invents a creative new factual and procedural posture grossly inconsistent with the actual record, constituting a condensed series of blatant misstatements of fact in its dogged effort to oppose the rights of developmentally disabled Nancy Golin to proceed on her causes of action, on grounds that she has no guardian ad litem to represent her in this lawsuit.  The AG does not address the qualifications of alternate nominee John Lehman, but only the application of Mrs. Golin. 

Plaintiffs do apologize for having to once again catalogue, parse, and deconstruct the convoluted misstatements of fact contained in the AG’s submissions.

A. PAGE ONE, SENTENCE ONE

1. “Five different judges? does not compute

 “Five different judges, three from the Santa Clara County Superior Court, one from the Sacramento County Superior Court, and one from the U.S.District Court for the Northern District of California, have already ruled that plaintiff Elsie Y. Golin is unable and unfit to provide for the best interests of Nancy K. Golin in this action.”  

 The matter was heard by two in Santa Clara County (Hyman, Murphy), one from Sacramento (McMaster) and one from the U.S. District Court (Alsup). Judge Hyman heard the matter twice, once ex parte in which he appointed Mrs. Golin, and once in a noticed motion hearing held on May 30, 2007.   Mr. Nelson is counting Judge Hyman twice.  And Judge Alsup shouldn’t be counted because he was presiding over the federal district court phase, and was merely echoing Judge Martin’s opinion without reaching any new findings of fact of his own, improperly taking judicial notice of the opinion of another court for the truth of the matter without taking plaintiffs’ allegations as true. Two judges appointed Elsie Golin as GAL. 

2. When you examine all the facts, the AG’s convoluted arguments collapse like a house of cards. Nothing stated about ‘unable and unfit to provide for the best interests of Nancy” in documents misquoted by AG. 

There are a host of other problems with the AG’s first sentence.  First, none of the judge’s rulings he mentions say anything about Mrs. Golin being “unable and unfit to provide for Nancy” (see Opp p1).  It is not in Judge McMaster’s order.  It is nowhere to be found in Judge Murphy’s order.  It is not even in Judge Hyman’s May 30, 2007 order; the only language there is that there supposedly exists an “unwaivable conflict of interest” between Mrs. Golin, Mr. Lehman and Nancy Golin without any supporting reasoned analysis; and that conclusion was reached after SARC’s counsel mischaracterized the evidence concerning Mr. Lehman. 

3. McMaster and Murphy orders were without prejudice, not mentioned in opposition.

Out of that four, two of the judges Mr. Nelson cites (McMaster, Murphy) vacated Mrs. Golin’s appointment without prejudice (see McMaster Minute Order, “w/o prejudice to reapplying for GAL”, and Murphy order, “is hereby vacated without prejudice to reapply for guardian ad litem(”) in an ex parte hearing. 

In Judge McMaster’s order, he states specifically, 

ADVANCE \d6“ This order is without prejudice to the Golins seeking their appointment as Guardian ad Litem in Santa Clara Superior Court” (!) (¶5).  

The inescapable conclusion is that two of the judges Mr. Nelson counts, McMaster and Murphy, apparently believed Mrs. Golin could and should reapply, without prejudice.  Collateral estoppel cannot be construed to apply to orders without prejudice by simpleminded reasoning. Thus, nothing was improper or surreptitious about her doing so, as the AG states. 

4. Mrs. Golin removed for doing her job too well, not because of Martin opinion

Mrs. Golin had been guardian ad litem in Sacramento for three months before SARC sought her removal.  The primary concern in Judge McMaster’s written opinion was explained that: 

ADVANCE \d6“(there is a danger that such powers will continue to be improperly exercised to the detriment of the ward pending the transfer of this case to the County of Santa Clara, particularly since the Golins’ action seeking relief from the Appellate Courts will delay the transfer to Santa Clara County(.”

What actually happened, as verified by the moving papers, was that Judge McMaster was influenced by SARC’s complaints that Mrs. Golin was obtaining medical records for Nancy in her role as guardian ad litem that SARC did not want her to have.  SARC’s motivation to remover her had nothing to do with Judge Martin’s opinion, but by more recent events for the previous three months during her appointment. She was discovering evidence of hidden abuse and neglect.  This was laudable, not sanctionable. She was being an effective and vigorous advocate, which is what she was supposed to be.  She was getting too close to the truth for SARC’s comfort.  She had been advised by all her attorneys that in their judgment her actions were proper and was proceeding with their approval.  This was hardly an invidious behavior requiring removal. 

The reference to the Martin opinion in McMaster’s order thus has the characteristics of dicta, because it was not central to his reasoned analysis as he explained it.  He said that Mr. and Mrs. Golin should never have been appointed and if it had come before him he would not have signed it, but then at the end he says they can apply again in Santa Clara County.  Once again, this was a non-evidentiary ex parte hearing in which there was no discussion or argument, and apparently because of that Judge McMaster did not see fit to impose conditions of prejudice upon Mrs. Golin’s opportunity to be reappointed in Santa Clara County.

5. Removal by McMaster inappropriately excessive remedy to concerns

If anything was truly improper about this, it would seem that Judge McMaster’s remedy (removal of Nancy’s advocate) was hardly narrowly tailored to serve the purpose (supervision of Mrs. Golin’s appointment by the court), when fairer means could have been pursued (admonishment or delineation of her powers).  A GAL serves under the supervision of the court, and the court could merely have decided to exercise that supervisory jurisdiction by issuing an order governing Mrs. Golin’s activities.  If she violated any discovery rules, al the court would have to have done is to have instructed her to not do it again and she would have abstained from the objected behavior.   That was not even considered, because Judge McMaster declined to even commence the hearing or hear oral arguments even though all parties were present and available to be heard.

6. SARC complains to Judge Murphy for ex parte removal

After Judge Hyman reappointed Mrs. Golin in Santa Clara county on April 8, 2007, SARC panicked.  Something had to be done to stop Mrs. Golin from gaining access to Nancy’s recent medical records, because Mrs. Golin had recently gone to Santa Clara Valley Medical Center, on the advice of her attorney Ms. Shapiro that doing so was proper and legitimately within the scope of a GAL in her opinion. Santa Clara Valley Medical Center was instructed by County Counsel not to release the medical information to Mrs. Golin on a routine request for records for Nancy Golin.

Thus, SARC complained to Judge Murphy on April 23, 2007, making the usual baseless arguments about “subterfuge” and “misinformation” that we are seeing reiterated here, allegedly because Mrs. Golin had failed to notify the defendants about her reapplication, a non-statutory duty that the defendants had no right to demand as a matter of law.  Again,  neither the law nor the established procedural mechanisms support notifying a defendant about the application of a guardian ad litem because it is simply none of their business who is appointed to represent the minor or incompetent plaintiff. SARC demanded immediate emergency ex parte relief in a non-evidentiary hearing before Judge Murphy, who had absolutely no appellate jurisdiction over the probate judge that had appointed her. 

There was no finality to Judge Murphy’s order, because it was granted without prejudice to her reapplying without any evidentiary findings, so that she could reapply in an irregular noticed motion hearing where evidence could arguably be taken and briefing could be carefully considered.   That is what she then did.

7. McMaster’s order vacating Kenny’s order was void, Murphy’s order vacating Hyman’s order was void, and each should be set aside.

tc \l3 "Field result goes here
McMaster’s order vacating Kenny’s order was void, Murphy’s order vacating Hyman’s order was void, and each should be set aside. Both orders are void because those judges lacked jurisdiction to sit in appellate review or in any way interfere with the orders of another Superior Court judge (McMaster/Kenny; Murphy/Hyman).  What was really improper about this action was the act of defendant SARC sneaking behind the back of one Superior Court judge in one department to get his order overturned by another Superior Court Judge in another department, even though there is only one court. 

The lack of jurisdictional authority is based on the firmly established principle (Williams v. Superior Court in and for Los Angeles County, (1939) 14 Cal.2d 656, 96 P.2d 334) underpinned by the State Constitution (Cal. Const. Amend. Art. VI §§4,11) that a judge of one department of a superior court has no jurisdiction to sit in appellate review of the orders of another judge of the same court, Ford v. Superior Court, (1986), 188 Cal.App.3d 737, 233 Cal.Rptr. 607. [One department of the superior court cannot enjoin, restrain, or otherwise interfere with the judicial act of another department of the superior court]. 

This principle is so fundamental that it has never been seriously challenged.  “Even between superior courts of different counties, having coequal jurisdiction over a matter, the first court of equal dignity to assume and exercise jurisdiction over a matter acquires exclusive jurisdiction”, Levine v. Smith (2006), 145 Cal.App.4th 1131, 52 Cal.Rptr.3d 197.

8. Judge Martin’s Orders in the Conservatorship Proceedings are Irrelevant to the Current Litigation. 

Judge Martin’s finding that Elsie Golin was unfit to provide for Nancy does not make her unfit to advocate for Nancy’s best interests in this litigation.  Nothing in Martin’s order suggests that Elsie Gordon could not act as GAL.  Judge Martin’s findings that the Golins had a history of conflicts with professionals, which they dispute, and had a period of marital discord in 2001 which has long ended are similarly irrelevant to the GAL appointment in 2007. 

The Golins had patched up their differences months before Nancy was removed and over two years before trial. Things were peaceful.  The parents were not having a dispute when Nancy was kidnapped by the state under color of law.  There was no evidence of abuse or neglect.  

There was nothing to justify removing Nancy in November 2001.  Nancy was never in any danger of immediate injury or harm.  She was healthy and well cared for.  The state could purport to show no reason to claim she was either abused or neglected.  There was no evidence whatever of abuse or neglect.  The Ninth Circuit recently revisited the Fourth Amendment issues on this in Rogers v. County of San Joaquin 487 F.3d 1288, C.A.9 (Cal.), May 29, 2007 and found that circumstances, worse than here, did not meet the necessary standard of immediate and irreparable harm for abrogating it.  This is where Martin and these defendants cooked the evidence.  

The DA investigated the parents in their criminal phase going on a 14-month fishing trip looking for dependent adult abuse and determined to drop their criminal charges for lack of evidence.  The only probable cause left at the end of the criminal proceedings was that the parents had merely “let” their daughter wander away, one time, on November 14, 2001, as evidenced by transcripts of the January 27, 2003 hearing before Judge Chang. If collateral estoppel applies to anything, it should bar the probate court from reaching a finding inconsistent with and contrary to the criminal dismissal.  The criminal charges were influenced by defendant DDS’s intention to conserve Nancy, as the plaintiffs had allege

9. Permitting a plaintiffs’ choice of guardian ad litem to serve at the whim of the defendants is a fundamental and irrational breach of due process.

Incessantly, the AG, SARC and County chant that the Golins’ supposed failure to give them notice concerning the appointments of Mrs. Golin was “surreptitious”, “improper”, that “she failed to inform the court about the circumstances of her appointment”.  They are all wrong.  The defendants have never once informed the court with a single authority that suggests a duty to obtain the defendants’ permission to sue them.  It is highly unlikely that any such competent authority could exist; all the available authorities hold to the contrary.  Mrs. Golin and her attorney truthfully alleged that in their opinion no such conflict of interest exists.  That was her belief, and for SARC to insist that she “confess” to their viewpoint of events is unreasonable.  SARC’s opinion is irrelevant.  The towering conflicts of interest held by defendants, as adequately alleged in the complaint, far outweigh any purported conflicts of the mother to the child, and no such conflicts appear on the face of the complaint or are admissible by judicial notice. 

B. PAGE TWO, SENTENCE TWO

ADVANCE \d6“Undeterred, and undaunted by collateral estoppel principles, plaintiffs now seek a sixth judge to reverse the first five.  

10. Undeterred and undaunted by collateral estoppel principles? 

Collateral estoppel principles only apply to issues that have been finally determined.  No issues have yet been finally determined yet in these interlocutory orders denying Mrs. Golin as guardian ad litem.  It was the defendants who improperly sought to remove Mrs. Golin as GAL after she had been properly appointed, twice.  Why were the defendants not “deterred by collateral estoppel principles” then? Judge 2 (McMaster) and Judge 4 (Murphy) improperly overruled [without prejudice to reapplying] the favorable orders of Judges 1 (Kenny) and 3 (Hyman), even though they were all Superior Court judges lacking any appellate jurisdiction over one another, making their orders overruling each other void and subject to being set aside. Collateral estoppel principles do not apply to interlocutory ex parte orders in non-evidentiary hearings rendered without prejudice to reapplication, such as Judge McMaster’s and Judge Murphy’s.

Tellingly, the AG does not propose any opportunity to appoint another candidate for GAL.  In the May 30 appearance he alone opposed the appointment of anyone.  His position at that time was that Nancy did not need a guardian ad litem because she was not a party to the proceeding, and she was not a party to the proceeding because she did not have an appointed Guardian ad Litem, an astonishing exercise in circular reasoning.  The AG’s opposition here is to any renotice or appointment, once again.  Who it is does not matter to the AG, even though that it is his ostensible reason.

11. Double standard is advocated for purported collateral estoppel by AG

Is it that the supposed collateral estoppel principles only apply when the defendants get what they want, and not when the plaintiffs’ motions are upheld? Judge 4, who the AG mistakenly identifies as Judge 5, held after a noticed motion hearing pursuant to Judge 3’s ruling “without prejudice to reapplying” that a GAL should be appointed, but then did not appoint one. The AG opposed even that phase of the hearing, revealing his true purpose that Nancy should not have a GAL at all, no matter who it was.  What the AG calls Judge 6 (Byrne) is Judge 5, merely Judge 4’s replacement after Judge 4 recused himself and became unavailable to hear the properly noticed motion to reconsider the first noticed hearing on grounds of blatant misrepresentation by SARC’s counsel.  Judge 4 was timely moved to hear a motion to reconsider which he put off until after was recused.  The parents have never been properly heard.  The renotice of motion is merely the same properly filed motion to reconsider that Judge Hyman was supposed to hear but did not. 

12. Allowing defendants to object to GAL appointment of plaintiffs is prescription for chaos 

This is what happens when the court allows defendants to file one unmeritorious motion for removal of GAL after another or allow the defendants complaints about alleged conflicts to be heard on the mistaken premise that they have a right to object to the selection. The court must restore control of its authority over the defendants’. Imagine how disruptive it would be to allow any defendant to instantly remove a plaintiffs’ guardian ad litem on ex parte notice without briefing at any instant they were displeased with an adverse discovery, for example.  Just as was done in McMaster’s and Murphy’s ex parte hearings.   The proceedings would be constantly delayed and the plaintiffs harassed by motions to remove the GAL again, and no progress could be made in bringing the case to trial.  A year has already been wasted this way, by the motions of the defendants.  Judge Kenny’s GAL appointment was completely proper and should have remained undisturbed at the outset. After six years of litigation, Nancy Golin still does not have a guardian ad litem to zealously advocate for her legal rights, as a result of these defendants’ sharp tactics. 

13. Purpose of GAL renotice of motion to reconsider is proper

All this renotice of motion seeks is to finally reconsider the appointment of the Guardian Ad Litem, either Mrs. Golin or Mr. Lehman, or either of the two alternate candidates offered, free from blatant mischaracterization by sworn statements of counsel SARC in a non-evidentiary noticed proceeding that is entirely unnecessary by any normal rules of due process, or obstruction by the AG in an unvarnished attempt to obstruct these proceedings.  

C. PAGE TWO, PARAGRAPH THREE.

14. There is no record on which to base any final conclusion concerning the 2003 probate conservatorship trial, even if it were relevant here.

tc \l3 "Field result goes here
There is no record on which to base any final conclusion concerning the 2003 probate conservatorship trial, even if it were relevant here.ADVANCE \d6“On October 22, 2003, this Court issued a Statement of Decision after a three week trial regarding the conservatorship of Nancy K. Golin, a disabled adult (Nelson Decl., Exh. A.

ADVANCE \d6 “ (In that decision, this Court set forth the history of abuse and neglect by the parents which led to the conservatorship of Nancy K. Golin being vested with California/s Department of Developmental Services (DDS).  (Nelson Decl., Exh. A. pp. 15-19)(” 

This inflammatory statement, “history of abuse and neglect” was never adopted as a finding by Judge Martin.  Nancy was never abused or neglected at all, not at all.  She was treated with love and excellent care.  We can be sure of that fact.  None of these allegations was sustained on the merits.  

At any rate, where does Martin even use this inflammatory phrase? Searching for this phrase, we find it here:

ADVANCE \d6“The DDS, SARC, and the Public Defender criticize Mr. and Mrs. Golin in three major areas: a history of abuse and neglect of their daughter while in their care’(” (ital added)

So, actually this is not Martin’s conclusion or finding, it is Martin merely quoting DDS, SARC, and the Public Defender’s allegations.  But the AG quotes it as if it were a finding.  The words are there, true, but they are not Martin’s words. They are Martin quoting somebody else. The phrase appears nowhere else in the opinion. 

D. tc \l3 "PAGE TWO/THREE, LAST PARAGRAPH (lines 22-24, 1-3)

ADVANCE \d6“(In a further attempt to overturn this Court’s ruling, plaintiffs Elsie Y. Golin and Jeffrey R. Golin filed an action in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, asserting civil rights violations both on their own behalf and on behalf of Nancy K. Golin.  

15. Civil Rights Lawsuit was never “an attempt to overturn this Court’s ruling”.

The AG’s claim that this lawsuit is an attempt to overturn this Court’s ruling has no basis, despite the AG’s obsessive attempts to claim it is so.  There is no support in the record whatever for this claim. 

This lawsuit is just what it says it is, a lawsuit for damages.  It is not a difficult concept.  It was conceived only a few weeks after Nancy was removed and after the parents were arrested.  The parents would have sued these defendants even if, or perhaps even more so, if the conservatorship decision had been favorable. They demonstrated their interest by filing a timely tort claim long before their conservatorship trial.  They filed this lawsuit just before their statute of limitations bars were due to expire.  They sought attorneys to file it even while their criminal charges were still pending. That lawsuit is merely a continuation of this lawsuit, maintaining the unexhausted pendent state tort claims.

To claim that it is merely an attempt to overturn the conservatorship is to demean and trivialize these serious charges and events that attempt to cover up criminal liabilities on the parts of many if not most of these defendants.

ADVANCE \d6The District Court summarily dismissed that action(. Plaintiffs unsuccessfully sought review of that decision in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal, and in the United States Supreme Court(”

16. Appellate review in federal court irrelevant and inapplicable

The only fundamental ground on which the Ninth Circuit affirmed Judge Alsup’s decision to dismiss this case for lack of jurisdiction was that the parents did not have counsel to represent their daughter.  This is the ground most often cited by reviewers.   The AG appears to be inviting this Court to entertain the notion that this dismissal was somehow on the merits or after reviewing evidence.  

The AG and the other defendants, expend their mightiest effort to keep the evidence out of court, away from discovery, and away from juries by getting the preceding cases dismissed on purely procedural grounds, by attempting to con each court into believing that the previous court saw some evidence which it never saw, prejudicing the Golins case one step at a time.

E. PAGE THREE, SECOND PARAGRAPH

ADVANCE \d6“(Following the District Court’s ruling, plaintiffs made a further attempt to circumvent this Court’s ruling of October 22, 2003 by filing the instant action in the Sacramento County Superior Court(”

17. Refiling of state claims in Sacramento was also not attempt to circumvent this Court’s 2003 ruling, but a continuation of the civil rights and tort lawsuit commenced in 2002

Again, this is the AG’s unsupported propaganda, that any lawsuit bearing any remote resemblance to the conservatorship could not possibly be a real lawsuit but only an attempt to circumvent the conservatorship ruling.  Despite the AG’s obsessive repetition, there is nothing whatever in the record to support this representation. It is not a difficult concept.  This is plainly a civil action, a lawsuit for damages, this lawsuit.  We refiled our unexhausted pendent claims in state court, as we are legally entitled to do in the normal course of the law.

18. No misinformation involved in original GAL appointment and Mrs. Golin never deemed “incompetent” by findings or determination 

ADVANCE \d6“(There, plaintiffs sought and obtained an order naming Elsie Y. Golin as guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin(”.

ADVANCE \d6“(In obtaining that appointment, plaintiffs misinformed the Sacramento County Superior Court by stating that Elsie Y, Golin was competent and qualified to serve as guardian ad litem, despite this Court’s ruling of October 22, 2003 to the contrary(”

 There has never been any finding anywhere showing that Mrs. Golin is not “competent”, the not-so-subtle implication perhaps being that there is some issue of mental incompetence which has never even been at issue.  Mrs. Golin is fully competent to serve.  Her performance in Sacramento was superlative. She is a keen advocate and totally committed to her daughter. Martin’s opinion contains nothing whatever about her competence or her ability to serve as guardian ad litem.  Again, where is the language that the AG purports to quote?  The issue of guardian ad litem qualification was never mentioned in the conservatorship hearings.  Therefore there was no misrepresentation of any sort.  The contention that this amounted “misrepresentation” is purely Mr. Nelson’s personal opinion, which we are not bound by

19. No notice to defendants of the application by plaintiff of a GAL appointment necessary

ADVANCE \d6“(Plaintiffs further failed to provide notice to defendants herein that the appointment was sought(”

Already dismissed three times here, and multiple times before; there is no such legal duty for notice of application for appointment of guardian ad litem, nor is the defendant entitled to one, and the defendants utterly fail to meet their burden of establishing such a duty as a matter of law, or even purporting to do so.  The choice is, quite simply put, none of their business, and lies entirely at the discretion of the plaintiff and outside defendants’, unless there is some conflict of interest apparent from the face of the complaint.  Judicial notice of records of other courts for the truth of the matter being forbidden at the pleading phase, there are no apparent reasons to provide such notice.

20. No such language finding Mrs. Golin unfit to act in Sacramento, AG misquotes orders

ADVANCE \d6“(Upon ex parte application by co-defendant San Andreas Regional Center (SARC), the Sacramento County Superior Court vacated its appointment of Elsie Y. Golin as guardian ad litem, specifically finding that Elsie Y. Golin was unfit to act as a guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin(”

Again, as we have pointed out, Judge McMasters’ actual purpose was different (see, A5). Judge McMaster lacked jurisdiction over Judge Kenny’s orders and thus the vacating order was void and null.   SARC “sneaked around” Judge Kenny to another judge to get his orders vacated.  Yet, judge McMaster vacated the appointment on other grounds, without prejudice.  Again, Judge McMaster never made any such statement, supposedly “specifically” finding that Elsie Golin was “unfit to act as guardian ad litem” in his opinion as we have gone over thoroughly before (see ¶¶A2, A3).  (Go look.) Again, where is the language that the AG is quoting in his own exhibits? 

F. PAGE THREE, PARAGRAPH THREE

ADVANCE \d6“(Following the transfer of this action back to the Santa Clara County Superior Court from Sacramento, plaintiffs once again surreptitiously sought and obtained an order appointing Elsie Y. Golin as guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin.  Again, plaintiffs failed to give defendants notice of their application.  (”(just as Judge McMaster had written in his order that she could do in Sacramento without prejudice when she got to Santa Clara.  Again, there is absolutely no law to support that a plaintiff owes a duty to the defendants in a lawsuit to give them notice of an application for guardian ad litem. According to the normal court procedure and the Judicial Council forms, papers are first filed with the clerk’s office and do not get served until they are approved, which occurs as a matter of course on application.

ADVANCE \d6“(Upon being fully informed of the underlying facts and the history of this litigation, this Court, acting through the Honorable Kevin J. Murphy, Judge of Department 22 of the Santa Clara County Superior Court, issued an order vacating the appointment of Elsie Y. Golin as guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin.  (See Santa Clara County Superior Court, Department 22 Order Vacating Appointment as Guardian Ad Litem filed on April 23, 2007, Nelson Decl., Exh. D.)(”

It is true that Judge Murphy is in Department 22.  The judge appointing Elsie in Santa Clara was Judge Hyman in Department 15.  This was not “surreptitious”.  Applications for Guardian Ad Litem in Santa Clara County according to local rules are only processed in the probate department, Department 15.  SARC was surreptitious in going to Judge Murphy by instant application without any real emergency, without the benefit of full briefing to have Judge Hyman’s orders reversed ex parte instead of going to Judge Hyman, because Judge Murphy lacked appellate jurisdiction to overturn an order another judge of equal standing. Judge Murphy was challenged and recused himself for a financial conflict of interest, not the least of which was that he briefly served as a top deputy in the District Attorney’s Office last January, making his orders void or voidable, on a separate second ground.

G. PAGE THREE, LAST PARAGRAPH, TO PAGE FOUR, FIRST PARAGRAPH

ADVANCE \d6The instant “Re-Notice of Motion” is the progeny of yet a fifth motion filed by plaintiffs, also unsuccessful, to have Elsie Y. Golin appointed as guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin.  Not surprisingly, the fifth motion again failed to provide the Court with a full picture of the history of this litigation by failing to bring the October 22, 2003 order to the attention of the Court, and by failing to explain why the two previous guardian ad litem appointments were vacated.

 Because Nancy K. Golin still did not have a guardian ad litem, and the AG opposed appointing anyone because the defendants pleaded in their demurrers that her claims could not go forward as long as she lacked one, a new application for someone representing her interests was inevitable, and not “surreptitious”.  Since Judge Murphy’s order was made ex parte, leaving no opportunity for full briefing, it was rendered “without prejudice to reapplying”.  Thus, the parents reapplied with a full noticed motion hearing.  There was no procedural impropriety involved.  Notwithstanding that the plaintiffs by law owed no legal duty to the defendants to do so, they filed a noticed motion for a hearing before Judge Hyman to have either Elsie Y. Golin or John Lehman appointed as guardian ad litem.  (The AG never mentions John Lehman at all, who was disqualified on even the flimsiest of grounds.)  All the issues that Mr. Nelson claims here were not brought out were in fact brought out quite thoroughly in briefings, in the originating motion, the response and the replies, and in oral arguments by both sides, as shown in the recorded transcripts. Judge Hyman ruled that Nancy Golin needed a guardian ad litem.

When SARC attorney Mr. Eric Gale misrepresented to Judge Hyman that Mr. Lehman had supposedly “admitted” in a declaration last year that he had conspired to “abduct” or “steal away” Nancy to a “medical procedure” in concert with the parents last year in order to supposedly “prove” a conflict of interest, the parents and their attorney were dumbfounded.  The visit was in fact a regular one approved by SARC, there was never any attempt to “abduct” or “steal Nancy away”, discussions were had between parents and SARC in advance concerning such an appointment, and the so-called “medical procedure” was merely a dental examination in order to get a second opinion to justify a way to save her from osteonecrosis of the jawbone and loss of her lower front teeth, an entirely laudable non-invasive and harmless investigation.   John Lehman’s declaration said no such thing, and in fact supported the real facts.  Apparently SARC counted on Judge Hyman not reading the cited declaration. Following this claim in open court, Judge Hyman on that basis found that there was a conflict of interest between Mrs. Golin, John Lehman and Nancy, and on that basis denied the motion. 

ADVANCE \d6  “And to complicate matters, plaintiffs filed their fifth motion in Department 15, instead of Department 22, where plaintiffs motion to have Elsie Y. Golin appointed as guardian ad litem had been rejected for a fourth time just one month earlier in a  ruling filed on April 23, 2007, by Judge Kevin J. Murphy (Nelson, Decl., Exh. D.)

Here, the AG’s misrepresentations become double compounded.  Department 15 was the proper department in which guardian ad litem motions are filed by local rule.  It was Department 22, Judge Murphy’s department, in which the ex parte motion was filed by SARC to vacate Judge Hyman’s first appointment, that was in fact improper! The motion was not the fifth motion for appointment but the third.  Each motion for reappointment was filed after the previous order was vacated expressly without prejudice to reapplying, i.e., not improperly.  If the court clerk truly directed the filer to Judge Murphy’s department rather than his being sought out as SARC alleged, the error should have been pointed out and Judge Murphy should have recused himself from the motion.

Of course it was filed just one month after her earlier appointment was vacated.  Why not? That was necessary in order to hold a noticed motion hearing, for the benefit of the defendants to allow them a chance to object as they insisted they should have that they did not have a right to by law.  It was filed because at that point the County and SARC were filing demurrers the first ground of which was that Nancy Golin’s causes of action could not proceed because she lacked a guardian ad litem.

ADVANCE \d6“(In another ruling filed on May 30, 2007, disposing of plaintiffs’ fifth motion seeking the appointment of Elsie Y. Golin as guardian ad litem, Judge Eugene M. Hyman of Department 15 of the Santa Clara County Superior Court, unequivocally ruled, “Elsie Y. Golin is hereby permanently precluded from serving as guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin in this litigation(.”

There was never any discussion about Mrs. Golin’s being “permanently precluded”, nor any reason judicially articulated for this.  The AG fails to mention anything about Mr. Lehman here. He was similarly barred, yet there was no Martin order concerning him, because he was not even in the picture at that time. Judge Hyman merely signed the order offered by the County that was instantly presented to him containing this unprecedented language, without notice to the plaintiffs or opportunity afforded to them to object.  

H. ARGUMENT I,  PAGE FIVE

 “A MOTION FOR RE CONSIDERATION MUST BE BROUGHT WITHIN TEN DAYS BEFORE THE SAME JUDGE THAT MADE THE ORIGINAL ORDER.”

Here, the AG once again violently twists the facts to suit its altered version of events.  Reluctantly, we are once again forced to waste precious court time to protect the record by unscrambling point-by-point the AG’s inverted opposition brief that is so densely packed with misinformation.  At the same time Mr. Nelson is in fact wasting court time by filing these meritless objections, he is simultaneously accusing the plaintiffs of being the true parties responsible for wasting time by merely responding.  And by responding, we risk inviting Mr. Nelson to once again misplace the blame on the plaintiffs rather than himself, for wasting the court’s time. This is turning into a shouting match. The court must rein in Mr. Nelson and his cohorts, to stop these frivolous and time-wasting sharp tactics.

21. Hyman motion for the May 30, 2007 was NOT a “motion to reconsider” Judge Murphy’s ruling, which was an ex parte non-evidentiary order removing Mrs. Golin without prejudice to reapplying, as SARC and AG surely know 

According to the AG’s reconstructed version of events, plaintiffs’ noticed motion to Judge Hyman to appoint either Mrs. Golin or Mr. Lehman GAL, heard May 30, is now re-styled by Mr. Nelson as a “motion to reconsider”. What was supposedly being “reconsidered”, according to Mr. Nelson’s tale, was Judge Murphy’s April 23 order vacating Mrs. Golin’s appointment earlier that month by Judge Hyman on April 8, 2007.  On that basis, Mr. Nelson argues, it was supposedly improper to bring the “motion to reconsider” back to Judge Hyman’s department, Department 15, because motions to reconsider are supposed to be heard by the judge that denied the objected-to orders.  That supposedly would have been Judge Murphy in Department 22, according to the AG.   

In fact, the reverse is true.  There never was any such “motion to reconsider” Murphy’s vacating of the GAL [without prejudice to reapplying]. The May 30, 2007 moving papers say nothing about “reconsideration”. Mr. Nelson and Mr. Gale provided the hearing transcripts of the May 30, 2007 hearing in Judge Hyman’s department in their opposition motion where the transcripts reflect both Mr. Gale, and Douglas Press from the Attorney General’s office appeared, (Mr. Press by telephone).  Nowhere is term “motion to reconsider” found there. Nowhere did either of these attorneys speak of a “motion to reconsider”.  Instead we find just a normal noticed motion to reappoint a guardian ad litem, as explained by plaintiffs’ attorney Shapiro in her opening comments:

ADVANCE \d6“MS. SHAPIRO:(So we are here to ask the court to appoint the guardian ad litem for Nancy Golin, and we would propose that Elsie Golin is an appropriate person, because she is her mother.  She does not have a conflict of interest.  And the role of guardian ad litem is very circumscribed, and it’s monitored by the Court. And it’s only to give the incompetent person standing to protect her rights in court(So I would say at the very minimum the Court should appoint Elsie Golin or John [Lehman] as the guardian ad litem today for purposes of giving Nancy Golin standing to oppose the substantive motions to dismiss her case(.(Reporters Transcripts of record, May 30, 2007, p 4, ll 16-26)

Once again, as throughout the AG’s opposition, there is a conflict between what the AG asserts and what the record shows.

22. No reasoned basis provided by Judge Murphy for reconsideration

Nor do they cite any reasoned opinion by Judge Murphy to object to, because Judge Murphy did not give one. Judge Murphy, as was stated before, only granted SARC’s ex parte motion without prejudice to reapplying, for two reasons: 1) because the hearing was not fully briefed and the issue not actually litigated, and 2) because SARC complained that they had not received notice of the application of Mrs. Golin (to which they were not entitled in the first place by operation of law).  

Plaintiffs brought a new original (second) application, this time attempting to silence the frivolous objections of the opposition that Judge Murphy had upheld, to be considered on a noticed motion calendar with notice to the opposing parties on May 30, 2007, although such GAL appointment applications do not require notice to defendants.

23. Judge Hyman’s department was the right department for appointment of GAL, not Judge Murphy’s department.  

Attempting to further compound the confusion, the AG then claims that it was improper to bring the “motion to reconsider” to Judge Hyman.  Mr. Nelson thinks that Judge Hyman’s department, No. 15, was the wrong department for appointing GAL’s. 

Judge Hyman in Department 15 was not the wrong judge to bring an application for guardian ad litem to.  Mr. Nelson (and Mr. Gale) have it backwards.  Judge Hyman was the only judge with jurisdiction to grant ex parte motions for guardian ad litem appointments according to Santa Clara County Local Probate Rule 13B, which he had originally did on April 8.  

24. 
Normal Court procedures mandated hearing GAL motions in Department 15

The Santa Clara County clerks’ office refused to accept plaintiffs’ GAL applications for any other department than Judge Hyman’s in Department 15, referring plaintiffs to the Probate filing unit, even though they pointed out that this was a civil case.   The probate unit refused to give them a copy of the unprocessed application so that, in theory, it could be served in advance to the defendants, because that is not their normal accepted usual procedure.  The form contains no proof of service to the opposing parties of the application, and there are “Ex Parte” boxes to check in two places on the form.  This is the Judicial Council Form 982(a)(27), “Application and Order for Appointment of Guardian Ad Litem - Civil”, which the clerk’s office required, and the only form or moving paper they would accept and the only form that is available for this purpose.  The AG cannot simply rewrite the Local Rules of the Santa Clara County Probate Court to suit his own preferences, and would have the plaintiffs punished for following the rules he disapproves of. 

It was Judge Murphy who was the wrong judge sought out by SARC to vacate the orders of another judge, Judge Hyman, who at first properly and originally appointed Mrs. Golin on April 8, 2007. 

Once again we are forced to reassert the fact, which the AG carefully avoids mentioning, that Judge Murphy’s order to vacate was issued without prejudice to reapplying.  

 Judge Murphy’s order was sought by SARC and granted on an emergency 24-hour basis, ex parte without a full hearing or full briefing.  Thus, we brought a new noticed. In this motion, we gave were given the notice that they insisted (without authority) they originally had a right to, to allow everyone to bring their objections and have their arguments heard even though they had no standing to object, based on Judge Murphy’s order, which was expressly given without prejudice to reapplying. 

25. Since the May 30 scheduled motion was not a “motion to reconsider”, but a regularly noticed renewed application with full notice to all parties, it was not “untimely filed”

SARC and the AG now compound their original misrepresentation of May 30 with the creative argument that the motion filed for May 30 in Department 15 (Judge Hyman) was supposedly a “motion to reconsider” the ex parte order of Judge Murphy of April 23, 2007, rendered expressly “without prejudice to reapplying”, and thus it had to be filed within the 10 day statutory requirements of CCP 1008.   The matter went through a full briefing cycle, with no brief denominating a ‘motion to reconsider” or an opposition to one, and no defendant ever referring in any way to a “motion to reconsider” at that time or questioning the timeliness or appropriateness of the motion according to the ambit of CCP §1008.  This is the first time we have ever heard this claim being made by the defendants. 

Because the grounds for Judge Murphy vacating the GAL order were partly that the defendants complained that they were not notified and insisted on being given an opportunity to object that they in fact had no actual legal right to demand, and because, pursuant to defendants’ misstated claims, plaintiffs wished to demand a full briefing cycle on the merits of the issue, which the ex parte motion had left them no opportunity to obtain, plaintiffs merely conceded to defendants’ unreasonable demands and brought the appointment issue back as a noticed motion in Judge Hyman’s department that would moot their objections on that issue.  

All parties understood these circumstances at the time, and no party raised any of the objections being voiced by Mr. Nelson or Mr. Gale for the defendants now.

 This claim compounds one preposterous lie after another.  Since it was not a “motion to reconsider” but a legitimately renewed application, there was no untimeliness whatever.  The rules governing motions to reconsider do not apply at all, and they need not do so because Judge Murphy’s judgment was not “final” in any conceivable sense and the motion does not fall under CCP 1008’s ambit.   CCP §1008(a) does not apply at all. The motion was not denominated as a “Motion to reconsider”, and these arguments of Mr. Gale and Mr. Nelson are being heard here for the first time.  

26. The so-called “motion to reconsider” (Hyman May 30, 2007 motion) was timely filed because it was not a motion to reconsider.

ADVANCE \d6“Plaintiffs Jeffrey R. Golin and Elsie Y. Golin were given notice of the ruling of Judge Hyman (Department 15) on June 6th, 2007 (Nelson Decl., Exh. G.) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1008, subdivision (a), the plaintiffs had 10 days, that is until June 16th, by which to apply to Judge Hyman for reconsideration.  They did not do so. (emph adeded)

Yes, they did! This is another example of Mr. Gale and Mr. Nelson truly running amok by incorrectly stating the dates of filing of the actual motion to reconsider, the one that Judge Hyman put off until after he recused himself, the motion that we are reconsidering now.  

This motion to reconsider, the actual one, was filed on June 8, 2007, and that can be confirmed from the court file.  Mr. Golin requested that it be held ex parte and filed the necessary papers just before 4pm on June 8th. That was within 10 days of the May 30, 2007 hearing.  (Mr. Gale served Judge Hyman’s orders to the plaintiffs 5 days late by third class mail from Marin County, but the plaintiffs did not even count that time.  In an abundance of caution, plaintiffs took with the hearing date as the start date for the 10 day period.).  

The requested ex parte rehearing was actually calendared by Judge Hyman’s department on June 8 to take place on Monday, June 11, and all parties attended, including Mr. Gale, and Mr. Nelson.  They were all notified in time of the purpose of the hearing and they all knew the purpose of the hearing when they attended it. The matter was discussed off record.   Judge Hyman chose not to go forward with the hearing on that date, originally putting the matter over to June 21.  Perhaps that is where Mr. Nelson got that date, but he is wrong.

Mr. Nelson says that the rules for motion to reconsider gave them until June 16, but that “they did not do so”.  Mr. Gale and Mr. Nelson attended on June 11th, and raised no timeliness objections to this motion to reconsider.  

Judge Hyman decided not to hear the motion that day and went off record for informal conversations with the parties in the courtroom.  Nothing was said by Mr. Gale or Mr. Nelson at that time about the timeliness, and they attended showing that they knew the date of the reconsideration hearing on July 11.  How can Mr. Gale and Mr. Nelson purport that a hearing that they attended where the subject matter was scheduled at another date? 

27. Santa Clara County Judges all admit to suspected bias sua sponte against plaintiffs on their own August 8 motion, not plaintiffs’

ADVANCE \d6“(Instead the plaintiffs have spent all their time finding numerous ways to delay, avoid, and obstruct all scheduled hearing on at least 10 defense motions that have been on file since April 2007.  An in the process, they have engineered challenges to every single judicial officer ever assigned to hear any of those motions, and also managed on August 8, 2007, to disqualify the entire 87-member Santa Clara County Superior Court bench, including Judge Hyman,(”

Plaintiffs “managed to disqualify the entire 87-member Santa Clara County Superior Court bench, including Judge Hyman”?  Mr. Nelson strategically avoids disclosing how the plaintiffs were able to carry off such an impressive feat. The fact is, the plaintiffs did nothing to carry it off!  It was just as much of a surprise to the plaintiffs as it was to anyone else. The Court did it on its own motion, sua sponte, when Judge Duong, who had previously been named as a defendant working at County Counsel’s Office, was appointed to the bench, and all the other judges recused themselves in apparent sympathy with her.  The plaintiffs do not actually know why that happened; not that they were exactly unhappy about it.  No one expected that to happen, except perhaps Presiding Judge Gallagher or Governor Schwarzenegger.  And now, the AG blames the plaintiffs for it, along with everything else that the County has done. 
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ADVANCE \d6“(Although the entire bench was recused long after the June 16, 2007 deadline had passed by which to apply to Judge Hyman for reconsideration,(”

The deadline of June 16 had not “passed”, because the motion to reconsider was filed on June 8th, as just explained. Two preliminary hearings were held but aborted by Judge Hyman, one on June 11, and the next on June 13.  The AG ignores that “incidental fact.”  He also ignores the incidental fact that the time between the June 11 filing date and the August 8 bench recusal was in large part tolled by Judge Hyman’s admitted conflicts of interest, see below.

ADVANCE \d6“( the plaintiffs ignore that incidental fact in the instant “Re-Notice of Motion” and continue to file one motion after another challenging the proceedings for the appointment of any person other than the plaintiff Elsie Y. Golin as guardian ad litem for Nancy K. Golin(.”

Judge Hyman attempted to make two other appointments, the original one for Claudia Johnson (reporter’s transcripts of May 30, 2007 hearing, p29, l 19).  

28. Ms. Claudia Johnson requested to have her appointment vacated without any “challenge” by plaintiffs, because she could not handle the case herself

The plaintiffs after researching Ms. Johnson and her attorney Margaret Martin, Esq., did not disapprove of Ms. Martin or her client Ms. Johnson.  Ms. Johnson through her attorney was never notified of the impending appointment by Judge Hyman, and when finally notified at the plaintiff’s request, withdrew, stating that they did not have the resources to act in the capacity requested of them, given the complexity of the case and there area of legal specialization.  Ms. Johnson’s motion to withdraw was granted on the same day in the preceding matter as the plaintiffs’ motion to reconsider was first calendared, June 11.

In her motion to be relieved, filed only a few days after she learned of her client’s appointment, she stated (¶5):

ADVANCE \d6“The time required to fulfill the responsibilities as guardian ad litem in this action would compromise Petitioner’s ability to perform the fiduciary work she has already committed to in other difficult and challenging conservatorship and probate cases pending before this Court. ( Petitioner is informed and on that basis believes and theron alleges that there are no funds  from which to be compensated for her services.  Petitioner is not able to commit to participate  in a case of this magnitude on a pro bono basis(Petitioner was unaware  that she was being considered by the Court to serve as guardian ad litem and had no notice of the motion.  Had she known, Petitioner could have advised the Court of the obstacles set forth above, and that she was not able to accept the position. Petitioner respectfully requests that the Court set aside her appointment nunc pro tunc.”

This hardly suffices to justify claiming, as does Mr. Nelson, that the petition for Ms. Johnson was opposed by the plaintiffs, because there is nothing in the record supporting such an opposition.  In fact the plaintiffs would have been delighted for Ms. Johnson to have been appointed as an alternative to Ms. Golin if necessary, if she had been paid and had the time.  But as she said, this is a case of considerable magnitude, and nobody asked her if she wanted to be appointed.  Clearly the plaintiffs cannot be blamed for that, can they?

29. Judge Hyman’s second attempt to appoint a GAL failed because he attempted to name an eminently unsuitable defendants’ attorney that had been involved in the case, named four times in the complaint as an active adversary with deep conflicts of interest.

As has been explained innumerable times, Judge Hyman next, on June 13, attempted to make a preposterous appointment of former SARC attorney and named adversary Alan Fleishman.  This could not be considered a serious attempt, because Mr. Fleishman had a deep conflict of interest making him eminently unsuitable.  

While there is no conflict of interest appearing on the face of the complaint in Ms. Golin’s case, there are four citations of conflict in Mr. Fleishman’s case.  Judge Hyman might as well have tried to appoint Darth Vader to head the Rebel Alliance.  The idea that Mrs. Golin, Nancy’s mother, could be considered unsuitable but not Mr. Fleishman, an especially nasty potential defendant and cited co-conspirator who sought to cover up Nancy’s kidnapping and filed slanderous reports with the press to get the parents maligned and arrested, stretches the imagination to the limit.  This truly would have put the fox in charge of the henhouse and turned the case on its head.  

Of course, as soon as the surprise nomination came up in court, the plaintiffs vigorously opposed and it did not take more than minute after the plaintiffs explained why for Mr. Fleishman to withdraw.  The Golins challenged Mr. Fleishman because he clearly WAS unsuitable.  

That was the only single candidate that the Golins challenged.  No other candidates were offered.  Not quite, “(continue to file one motion after another challenging the proceedings for the appointment of any person other than the plaintiff Elsie Y. Golin(” In fact we filed no motions challenging the proceedings of the appointment of anyone.

ADVANCE \d6 The latest such motion, captioned “Motion to Set Aside Void Orders of Removal of Elsie Golin as Guardian Ad Litem” directly challenges both of the respective rulings of Judge Murphy and Judge Hyman discussed above, and defies all the statutory requirements mandated by Code of Civil Procedure section 1008, subdivision (a).

Again, Mr. Nelson’s persistence at error is truly remarkable.  It is true that the rulings of Judge Murphy is being challenged, but also Judge McMaster, and both for the same reason, because as we have explained above neither Judge had appellate jurisdiction to overrule another Superior Court Judge.  Again, that motion is not a “motion to reconsider” and CCP §1008 is not in play here. That motion is a valid motion under CCP 473(d), to set aside void orders, which this court may hear and judge on its merits, rather than seeking the unreliable advice of Mr. Nelson.  

The renotice of motion that pertains here is only the motion to reconsider the Orders of May 30, 2007, which we timely filed and which has not yet been heard due to the obstructiveness of these state defendants, the challenge of Judge Hyman on June 15 and his recusal on August 8, 2007, who in truth are the ones that have truly opposed an appointment of any such candidate every dogged step of the way (see reporter’s transcripts of May 30, 2007 hearing, p. 4, ll 27-28; p. 5, ll 1-16), and yet who now claim that the rights of Nancy Golin should be protected – by the defendants.

30. Defendants have failed to state any rational basis for a legitimate state interest in defeating appointment of any Guardian Ad Litem for Nancy K. Golin

What is missing here is any explanation of why the AG feels so strongly about this matter, and why they feel it is so vitally necessary as this for state interests to oppose it even at the risk of squandering their own precious credibility.  The defendants’ claim of a “conflict of interest”, untrue, unproven and unfounded can hardly be sufficient to arouse so much desperation.  The AG’s opposition brief and summary is peculiarly uninformative on this question. 

Someone has to be guardian ad litem, and apparently there is no one else that the state will permit to be considered.  It is the state, not the parents, who file one motion after another challenging the appointment of any guardian ad litem that they do not control.  ADVANCE \d6
CONCLUSION

A guardian ad litem for Nancy Golin has not yet been reappointed since April 8, 2007. Her causes of action may not move forward without a GAL, and the defendants have staunchly resisted any such appointment while they have pressed for their demurrers to be decided on grounds that Nancy Golin does not have a guardian ad litem.   Plaintiffs motion to reconsider Judge Hyman’s denial of the appointment for guardian ad litem should be granted, the rulings that neither Mrs. Golin or Mr. Lehman should be permanently barred from serving as guardians ad litem be vacated as the result of deliberately misleading characterization and convolution of procedural events, and either Mrs. Golin or Mr. Lehman should be appointed as a first choice. The defendants’ obstructionist tactics must be stopped so that Nancy may obtain the justice she seeks in this litigation.   

Respectfully Submitted this 9th day of November, 2007.
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